
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners


 January 6, 2010
 3:30 P.M.


Call to Order by Chairman, Invocation, and Pledge to the Flag


Acceptance of Agenda.


ORGANIZATIONAL SESSION:


A. Election of Board Chairman for the year 2010.


B. Election of Board Vice-Chairman for the year 2010.


CONSENT AGENDA:


1. Approval of authorization to sign checks combining any of the following
two signatures for transactions exceeding $5,000: Chairman, Vice-
Chairman, County Administrator.


2. Approval of authorization to sign checks for transactions $4,999 or less:
Chairman, Vice-Chairman, County Administrator.


3. Approval of the Chairman and Vice-Chairman to execute contracts,
resolutions, agreements and other documents approved by and on behalf
of the Board of Commissioners.


4. Approval of proposed meeting schedule for 2010.


5. Approval of Resolution Number 2010-01 appropriating funds necessary
for the annual lease payment on the Jail Expansion and Justice Center.


6. Approval of  Resolution Number 2010-02 renewing Resolution Number
90-07 which imposes a $1.50 monthly “911" charge upon each exchange
access facility subscribed to by telephone subscribers.


7. Approval of Resolution Number 2010-03 renewing Resolution Number
90-03A which imposes a $1.00 monthly “911" wireless enhanced charge
upon each exchange access facility subscribed to by telephone
subscribers.


8. Approval of staff’s recommendation to adjust the county’s travel expense
reimbursement rate from $.451 cents to $.41 cents per mile effective
January 1, 2010.


9. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award the county’s annual Bid
#723 Janitorial Services for paper supplies to various vendors.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Jack Smith, Chairman


Herb Frady, Vice Chairman
Lee Hearn


Robert Horgan
Eric Maxwell


i


STAFF
Jack Krakeel, County Administrator


Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk


Floyd Jones, Deputy Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Commissioners Conference Room


Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
1st Wednesday each month at 3:30 p.m.


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200


Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
January 6, 2010
Page 2


10. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award the county’s annual Bid #724 Janitoral Services for plastic
products to various vendors.


11. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award the county’s annual Bid #725 Janitorial Services for cleaning
supplies to various vendors.


12. Approval of staff’s recommendation that the existing Subgrant Agreement with the Atlanta Regional
Commisssion for completion of the Comprehensive Transportation Plan (CTP) be extended until April 0,
2010.


13. Approval of request from the Sheriff’s office to amend the Overtime Budget for the Criminal Investigations
Division by $3,339.31 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various Federal Agencies.


14. Approval of staff’s request to extend the county’s existing annual asphalt agreement with current vendors
for an additional two months.


15. Approval of staff’s recommendation to transfer $4,300.00 from Contingency Funds to fund Corrective Action
Plan activities at the Public Works / Fleet Maintenance property as required by the Georgia Environmental
Protection Division.


16. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award Bid #728 Water Distribution Parts, to five companies which
were low bidders on items used by the Water System, for water distrubitution system installation and repair.


17. Approval of minutes for the Board of Commissioners’ meeting held on December 10, 2009.


OLD BUSINESS:


C. Continued discussion of staff’s recommendation concerning a proposed policy for open market purchases. 
This item was last discussed during the November 4, 2009 Board of Commissioners Workshop Meeting.


NEW BUSINESS:


D. The Finance Department will provide an update on the County’s Purchasing Card Program for activity
occurring in Fiscal Year 2009.


E. Discussion with GIS Steering Committee regarding grant opportunities for GIS aerial photography.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT
ATTORNEY’S REPORT
STAFF REPORTS
BOARD REPORTS
EXECUTIVE SESSION
ADJOURNMENT








Minutes
Board of Commissioners


December 10, 2009
 7:00 P.M.


Notice: A complete audio recording of this meeting can be heard by accessing Fayette
County’s Website at  www.fayettecountyga.gov.  Click on “Board of Commissioners”, then
“County Commission Meetings”, and follow the instructions.  The entire meeting or a single
topic can be heard.


                       
The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on Thursday, December 10, 2009, at
7:00 p.m. in the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue,
Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Jack Smith, Chairman
Herb Frady, Vice Chairman
Lee Hearn
Robert Horgan
Eric Maxwell


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant


 Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk
______________________________________________________________________________________


Chairman Smith called the meeting to order.
Commissioner Hearn offered the Invocation.
Pledge of Allegiance.


ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA:  Commissioner Horgan made a motion to accept the agenda as presented.
Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.


PUBLIC HEARING:
A. CONSIDERATION OF PETITION NO. 1216-09 AND PETITION NO. RP-046-09, JOHN ALAN BELL,


OWNER/AGENT, REQUEST TO REZONE LOT 18 OF LAKEVIEW ESTATES CONSISTING OF 1.03 ACRES
FROM R-40 TO O-I TO DEVELOP OFFICE INSTITUTIONAL USES AND REQUEST TO CHANGE THE USE
OF LOT 18 FROM SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL TO OFFICE-INSTITUTIONAL.  THIS PROPERTY IS
LOCATED IN LAND LOT 127 OF THE 5  DISTRICT AND FRONTS ON SR 54 WEST:TH


Director of Community Development Pete Frisina read the rules for rezonings as well as the rezoning request.  


John Alan Bell, petitioner for the rezoning request, asked for the Board’s consideration to rezone lot 18 of Lakeview
Estates consisting of 1.03 acres from R-40 to O-I to develop office institutional. He said by rezoning his lot, it would be



http://www.fayettecountyga.gov





Board of Commissioners Minutes
December 10, 2009
Page 2


consistent and not doing so would be inconsistent.  He said he was asking for the highest and best use of the property
and not doing that would deny him that right.  He noted that staff had recommended approval again for the second time
and remarked that it met the criteria for O-I.  


Chairman Smith asked if there was anyone wishing to speak in favor of the petition.  Hearing none, he asked if anyone
wished to speak in opposition.  


Tommy Long said he had lived in Lakeview Subdivision since 1985.  He noted that the property in question tonight was
only 1.03 acres and did not come close to the intent of 5 plus or minus acres.  He asked for the Board’s consideration
to review all of the facts and deny this rezoning request.


Mrs. Stuart Barnes said she had lived on Lakeview Court for 33 years.  She commented on some of the surrounding
rezonings in her area.  She also asked for the Board’s consideration to deny this request.  


Carlton Williams said he lived on Lakeview Lane since 1977.  He said he was opposed to the rezoning of this petition.
He asked for the Board’s consideration to deny this rezoning and to retain the integrity of the community.  


Mona MacDonald said she lived on Lakeview Lane in Lakeview Estates Subdivision.  She said she was appealing to
the Board in strong opposition to this rezoning request.  She said she was not in favor of a mixed use zoning and if this
was allowed, it would change the integrity of the neighborhood.  She also felt by increasing business traffic to this already
congested area would impact traffic even more.  She asked for the Board’s consideration to deny this request.  


Varner Holmes said she lived on Old Mill Court in Crystal Lakes Subdivision.  She asked for the Board’s consideration
to deny this because of the curb cut as well as the median cut at the same place.  She felt the safety issue should be
considered as well before someone was seriously injured at the intersection.


Chairman Smith asked if there was any rebuttal time left and Executive Assistant Carol Chandler responded yes.


Mr. Bell remarked that his property was located on the hill and did not appear to be included in this subdivision.  He said
commercial zoning was already in close proximity.  He asked the Board to remain consistent and treat him equal and
to approve his rezoning request.  


Chairman Smith remarked that this concluded the public comment portion of the public hearing and asked for the Board’s
pleasure in this matter.


Commissioner Maxwell made a motion to deny Petition No. 1216-09 and Petition No. RP-046-09 as presented.
Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment
No. 1", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.   A copy of the Ordinance and Resolution denying
Petition No. 1216-09, identified as “Attachment No. 2", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


B. CONSIDERATION OF PETITION NO. 1218-09, SOUTHERN PINE PLANTATIONS COMMERCIAL GROUP,
LLC, OWNERS, AND SEYFARTH SHAW, LLP, AGENT, REQUEST TO REZONE 27.46 ACRES FROM O-I,
A-R, AND C-C TO C-C TO DEVELOP COMMERCIAL USES; AND CONSIDERATION OF PETITION NO.
1219-09, SOUTHERN PINE PLANTATIONS COMMERCIAL GROUP, LLC, OWNERS, AND SEYFARTH
SHAW, LLP, AGENT, REQUEST TO REZONE 5.37 ACRES FROM O-I, A-R, AND C-C TO O-I TO DEVELOP
OFFICE USES.  THIS PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN LAND LOTS 17 AND 18 OF THE 6  DISTRICT ANDTH


FRONTS ON SR 74 SOUTH:







Board of Commissioners Minutes
December 10, 2009
Page 3


Director of Community Development Pete Frisina read the rezoning request.  Chairman Smith remarked that the Board
had received a request from the petitioner’s attorney requesting to table this item until the Board’s public hearing meeting
in January, 2010.  A copy of the letter, identified as “Attachment No. 3", follows these minutes and is made an official
part hereof.  


Commissioner Frady made a motion to table Petition No. 1218-09 and Petition No. 1219-009 as requested until the
Board of Commissioners’ meeting on Thursday, January 28 .  Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  The motionth


carried 5-0.


PUBLIC COMMENT:
BOB ROSS:   Bob Ross said he would like to thank Fayette County employees for their service during this year.  He said
it had been a tough year financially with a lot going on.  He said every time he had dealt with a member of staff and
County employees he had received outstanding support from them.  He said he wanted to publically thank the
employees for what they do every day and put in a tough day of work and he wanted to thank them for their contributions
and express appreciation for what they do for Fayette County.  


CONSENT AGENDA: Commissioner Horgan  made a motion to approve the consent agenda items 1-12 as presented.
Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.


TAX ASSESSORS’ OFFICE - EXTEND BID #694:
1. Approval of staff’s recommendation to extend Bid #694 for Printing and Mailing Services for twelve additional


months with the current vendor, Dove Mailing, Inc., for the printing and mailing of assessment forms and notices
by the Assessors’ Office.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 4", follows these minutes and
is made an official part hereof.  


BOARD OF ASSESSORS - THERESA OCHELTREE REAPPOINTED:
2. Approval of the reappointment of Theresa Ocheltree to the Board of Assessors for a six-year term commencing


January 1, 2010 and ending December 31, 2015.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 5",
follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


PLANNING COMMISSION - AL GILBERT REAPPOINTED:
3. Approval of the reappointment of Al Gilbert to the Post 1 seat on the Planning Commission for a three-year term


commencing January 1, 2010 and ending December 31, 2012.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment
No. 6", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


PLANNING COMMISSION - JIM GRAW REAPPOINTED:
4. Approval of the reappointment of Jim Graw to the Post  2 seat on the Planning Commission for a three-year


term commencing January 1, 2010 and ending December 31, 2012.  A copy of the request, identified as
“Attachment No. 7", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS - BILL BECKWITH REAPPOINTED:
5. Approval of reappointment of Bill Beckwith to the Zoning Board of Appeals for a three year term commencing


January 1, 2010 and ending December 31, 2012.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 8",
follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof







Board of Commissioners Minutes
December 10, 2009
Page 4


BOARD OF HEALTH - LYN REDWOOD REAPPOINTED:
6. Approval of the reappointment of Lyn Redwood to the Board of Health for a four-year term commencing January


1, 2010 and ending December 31, 2013.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 9", follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof


BOARD OF HEALTH - LYNETTE PETERSON REAPPOINTED:
7. Approval of the reappointment of Lynette Peterson to the Board of Health for a four-year term commencing


January 1, 2010 and ending December 31, 2013.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 10",
follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof


VEHICLE REPLACEMENT COMMITTEE’S RECOMMENDATION - NEW HOLLAND TRACTOR, MODEL TC33D:
8. Approval of the Vehicle Replacement Committee’s recommendation to replace a New Holland tractor, Model


TC33D with a tractor with comparable capabilities, and approval for the Purchasing Department to dispose of
the old tractor which is no longer serviceable.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 11", follows
these minutes and is made an official part hereof


FINANCE DEPARTMENT - COUNCIL OF JUVENILE COURT JUDGES OF GEORGIA GRANT:
9. Approval of the Finance Department’s request to amend the FY 2010 budget by accepting a $4,665.52 grant


from the Council of Juvenile Court Judges of Georgia.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 
12", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


SHERIFF’S OFFICE - OVERTIME BUDGET FOR THE CRIMINAL INVESTIGATIONS DIVISION:
10. Approval of the Sheriff’s Office request to amend the Overtime Budget for the Criminal Investigations Division


by $2,312.95 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various Federal Agencies.  A copy of the
request, identified as “Attachment No. 13", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof


ANIMAL CONTROL:
11. Approval of staff’s recommendation to increase the FY2010 budget to recognize donations received by Animal


Control and to apply $386 of those donations to the Animal Control’s van project 9910A to cover cost coverage
of County Logo and close project.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 14", follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.


MINUTES:
12. Approval of minutes for Board of Commissioners’ meeting held on November 12, 2009.


OLD BUSINESS:
C.       CONSIDERATION OF STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION TO REDUCE THE COUNTY’S PARTICIPATION IN


THE GEORGIA MUNICIPAL ASSOCIATION (GMA) LEASE POOL PROGRAM, INCLUDING THE
OUTSTANDING AMOUNT OF CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION AND THE ASSOCIATED INTEREST-
RATE SWAP AGREEMENT, BY THE AMOUNT OF THE ACCOUNT BALANCE DETERMINED TO BE
“EXCESS FUNDS.”


Chief Financial Office Mary Holland discussed this item.  She said earlier this year the Board approved staff to reduce
the County’s participation by over $1 million.  She said staff had now received a second notice from the Georgia
Municipal Association stating that the County had another amount of excess funds in the amount of $818,000 as of June
1, 2010.  She asked for the Board’s consideration to approve staff’s recommendation to reduce the County’s participation







Board of Commissioners Minutes
December 10, 2009
Page 5


in the Georgia Municipal Association Lease Pool Program, including the outstanding amount of Certificates of
Participation and the associated interest-rate swap agreement in the amount of $818,000.


Commissioner Frady made a motion to approve staff’s recommendation to reduce the County’s participation in the
Georgia Municipal Association (GMA) Lease Pool Program, including the outstanding amount of Certificates of
Participation and the associated interest-rate swap agreement in the amount of $818,000. Commissioner Horgan
seconded the motion.  The motion carried  5-0.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 15", follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


D. CONSIDERATION OF STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION TO AWARD PROPOSAL # P726 TO PEACH STATE
AMBULANCE FOR THE  PURCHASE OF THREE AMBULANCES INCLUDING RADIOS AND GRAPHICS
AT A TOTAL COST OF $439,230:


Director of Public Safety Allen McCullough discussed this item.  He remarked that the three ambulances did meet the
criteria for the vehicle replacement schedule.  He asked for the Board’s consideration to award Proposal #P726 to Peach
State Ambulance for the purchase of three ambulances including radios and graphics at a total cost of $439,230.  


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve staff’s recommendation to award Proposal #P726 to Peach State
Ambulance for the purchase of three ambulances including radios and graphics at a total cost of $439,230.
Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion, discussion followed.


Chief Financial Officer Mary Holland interjected that the approval of the additional funding in the amount of $189,230
which was available in the Vehicle Replacement Fund also needed to be included, since the amount allocated to
ambulance replacement in the vehicle replacement fund was $189,230 less than this request.


Commissioner Horgan amended the motion to also include approval of $189,230 additional funding from the Vehicle
Replacement Fund. Commissioner Hearn seconded the amended motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the
request, identified as “Attachment No. 16", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


E. CONSIDERATION OF STORMWATER MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT’S RECOMMENDATION TO AWARD
THE PREPARATION OF A STORMWATER UTILITY FEASIBILITY STUDY TO INTEGRATED SCIENCE &
ENGINEERING IN THE AMOUNT OF $39,450:


Water System Director Tony Parrott discussed this item.  He said the Stormwater Management Department’s
recommendation was to award the preparation of a stormwater utility feasibility study to low bidder Integrated Science
& Engineering in the amount of $39,450.  He asked for the Board’s consideration to approve this recommendation.  


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve the Stormwater Management Department’s recommendation to award
the preparation of a stormwater utility feasibility study to Integrated Science & Engineering in the amount of $39,450.
Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment
No. 17", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes
December 10, 2009
Page 6


NEW BUSINESS:
F.            CONSIDERATION OF THE BOARD OF HEALTH’S RECOMMENDATION TO IMPLEMENT A PERMITTING


FEE OF $100 FOR MOBILE FOOD CART APPLICATIONS:


Director of Environmental Health Rick Fehr discussed this item.  He remarked that with the change in the economy his
department was receiving a number of requests to be permitted for a mobile food unit.  He noted that three surrounding
counties have already adopted a mobile food unit fee.  He said on November 17  the Board of Health approved a $100th


mobile food unit fee and by State law this fee cannot be instituted until it is approved by the Board of Commissioners.
He asked for the Board’s consideration to approve this fee.  


Commissioner Horgan  made a motion to approve the Board of Health’s recommendation to implement a permitting fee
of $100 for mobile food cart applications.  Commissioner Frady  seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy
of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 18", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


G. CONSIDERATION OF A REQUEST FOR ANNEXATION FROM PEACHTREE CITY FOR HYDE
INVESTMENTS, LLLP FOR A 48.151 ACRE TRACT.  THIS PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN LAND LOT 61 OF
THE 7  DISTRICT NEAR STAGECOACH ROAD:TH


Director of Community Development Pete Frisina discussed this request for annexation from Peachtree City. He said
this annexation did fit into the Land Use Plan as the County has the land use for rural/residential which was a two to
three acre density per single-family dwelling and it was also adjacent to some property along Spear Road that was zoned
R-72 which was a two acre minimum zoning.  He said he was before the Board tonight to determine if the Board wanted
to object to the request or not object.  


After a brief discussion, Chairman Smith remarked that the Board had no legal basis for objection to the request and no
action was taken.  


H. CONSIDERATION OF THE WATER COMMITTEE’S RECOMMENDATION THAT THE BID FOR THE
CONSTRUCTION OF THE LAKE MCINTOSH  WATER RESERVOIR PROJECT BE AWARDED TO BRAD
COLE CONSTRUCTION IN THE AMOUNT OF $8,233,255.12:


Water System Director Tony Parrott discussed this item.  He asked for the Board’s consideration to award the bid for
the construction of the Lake McIntosh Water Reservoir project to Brad Cole Construction in the amount of $8,233,255.12.


Commissioner Frady made a motion to approve the Water Committee’s recommendation that the bid for the construction
of the Lake McIntosh water reservoir project be awarded to Brad Cole Construction in the amount of $8,233,255.12
including alternative 8.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the request,
identified as “Attachment No. 19", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


I. DISCUSSION OF PROPOSED SPECIAL LOCAL LEGISLATION CONCERNING SUPERIOR COURT
JUDGES IN THE GRIFFIN JUDICIAL CIRCUIT:


Commissioner Maxwell requested this item be removed from the agenda.







Board of Commissioners Minutes
December 10, 2009
Page 4


J.          CONSIDERATION OF STAFF’S REQUEST TO PROCEED WITH REPAIRS TO A SPECIFIED PORTION OF
FOUNDATION AND WALL(S) AT THE FAYETTE COUNTY JAIL:


Major Charlie Cowart of the Sheriff’s Office discussed this item.  He said Mallett Consulting, Inc. had recommended the
geotechnical firm of Nova Engineering and the results indicated that the soil underneath the slab had consolidated and
was settling. He pointed out that this situation had been ongoing for approximately one year and had steadily gotten
worse.  He asked for the Board’s consideration to approve staff’s request to proceed with these repairs to a specified
portion of foundation at the jail not to exceed $161,800. 


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve staff’s request to proceed with repairs to a specified portion of
foundation and wall(s) at the Fayette County Jail not to exceed $161,800 with said funds to come from the contingency
fund.  Commissioner Frady seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the request, identified as
“Attachment No. 20", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT:
STAFF PROMOTIONS: County Administrator Jack Krakeel announced the promotion of two individuals to positions of
Department Directors.  He remarked that Vanessa Birrell was promoted to the Director of Stormwater Management and
Fred Sisson was promoted to the Director of Animal Control.  


REQUEST FROM THE TOWN OF TYRONE: County Administrator Jack Krakeel remarked that he had received a
request from the Town of Tyrone regarding certain improvements to Valleywood Road with most improvements
consisting of improvement of the drainage along Valleywood Road.  He said staff had met with the Town’s staff and they
had reviewed the issues and had prepared a recommendation. He said the Town was requesting that the County conduct
all work associated with this including the development of any plans and engineering work that would be required.  He
remarked staff was of the opinion that there were significant issues associated with the grading of this roadway and were
requesting that the Town conduct those engineering studies and the County could certainly conduct the work subsequent
to receiving those studies.  


There was a consensus of the Board to proceed.   


ATTORNEY’S REPORT:
None.


STAFF REPORTS:
None.


BOARD REPORTS:
None.


EXECUTIVE SESSION: County Attorney Scott Bennett requested an Executive Session to discuss litigation.  


Commissioner Frady made a motion to adjourn to Executive Session to discuss litigation.  Commissioner Horgan
seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.


Commissioner Hearn made a motion to adjourn the Executive Session and return to open session.  Commissioner
Horgan seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.







Board of Commissioners Minutes
December 10, 2009
Page 4


Chairman Smith called the meeting back to order and said that litigation had been discussed.


Commissioner Hearn made a motion to authorize the Chairman to execute the Executive Session Affidavit affirming that
litigation had been discussed in executive session.  Commissioner Frady seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.
A copy of the Executive Session Affidavit, identified as “Attachment No.  21", follows these minutes and is made an
official part hereof.  


ADJOURNMENT: Hearing no further business to come before the Board, Chairman Smith adjourned the
meeting at 8:43 p.m.


__________________________________ _______________________________________
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk Jack R. Smith, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette
County, Georgia, held on the 6  day of January, 2010.th


___________________________________
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk








 2010 APPROVED MEETING SCHEDULE 


  


 THIS SCHEDULE REFLECTS THE CURRENT MEETING FORMAT AS FOLLOWS: 


 


1ST WEDNESDAY OF EACH MONTH AT 3:30 P.M.: Though open to the public, these meetings are 
intended for matters of a somewhat routine nature, briefings by the County Administrator or 
department heads, and Ahouse-keeping@ kinds of issues. Official action by the Commission can 
be taken but generally is not. Public hearings never occur as a part of these sessions. Generally 
speaking, individuals or groups do not appear before the Board to be heard during these 
meetings unless invited by the County Administrator, a Department Head or Commissioner. 
Agendas are prepared in advance. All sessions are attended by members of the Press. 
 
2ND AND 4TH THURSDAY OF EACH MONTH AT 7 P.M.: Agendas for these meetings can include any 
subject but in particular, matters of interest to the general public such as public hearings on 
rezoning petitions, budget discussions, etc. Also, individuals or groups may schedule time to 
appear before the Commission during these meetings to discuss any matter of concern. Agendas 
are prepared in advance. All sessions are attended by members of the Press. 
 
Canceled meetings, special called meetings and special topic workshops will be announced in 
accordance with requirements of State law. 


 
 
DATE 


 


TIME 


 


 
 
 


 


DATE 


 


TIME 
 
 


 
January 6 – W 


 
3:30 pm  


 
 


 
 


 
July 7 - W 


 
3:30 pm 


 
 


January 14 - T 7 pm 
 
. 


 
 


 
July 8 - T 


 
NO MTG. 


 
 


 
January 28 - T 


 
7 pm 


 
 


 
 


 
July 22 - T 


 
7 pm 


 
 


 
February 3 - W 


 
3:30 pm 


 
 


 
 


 
August 4 - W 


 
3:30 pm 


 
 


 
February 11 - T 


 
7 pm 


 
 


 
 


 
August 12 - T 


 
7 pm 


 
 


 
February 25 - T 


 
7  pm 


 
  


 
 


 
August 26 - T 


 
7 pm 


 
 


 
March 3 - W 


 
3:30 pm 


 
 


 
 


 
September 1 - W 


 
3:30 pm 


 
 


 
March 11 - T 


 
7 pm 


 
 


 
 


 
September 9 - T 


 
7 pm 


 
 


 
March 25 - T 


 
7 pm 


 
        


 
 


 
September 23 - T 


 
7 pm 


 
 


 
April 7 – W 


 
3:30 pm 


 
 


 
 


 
October 6 - W 


 
3:30 pm 


 
 


 
April 8 – T 


 
NO MTG.  


 
 


 
 


October 14 - T 7 pm 
 
 


 
April 22 – T 


 
7 pm 


 
 


 
 


 
October 28 - T 


 
7 pm 


 
 


 
May 5 – W 


 
3:30 pm 


 
  


 
 


 
November 3 - W 


 
3:30 pm 


 
 


 
May 13 – T 


 
7 pm 


 
 


 
 


 
November 18 - T 


 
7 pm 


 
 


 
May 27 – T 


 
7 pm 


 
 


 
 


 
November 25 - T 


 
NO MTG. 


 
Thanksgiving 


 
June 2 – W 


 
3:30 pm 


 
 


 
 


 
December 1 - W 


 
3:30 pm 


 
 


 
June 10 - T 


 
7 pm 


 
 


 
 


 
December 9 - T 


 
7 pm 


 
 


 
June 24 - T 


 
7 pm 


 
 


 
 


 
December 23  - T 


 
NO MTG. 


 
Christmas  


 
 








STATE OF GEORGIA


COUNTY OF FAYETTE


RESOLUTION
NUMBER 2010-01


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR FAYETTE COUNTY; TO
PROVIDE FOR THE LEASE RENEWAL AND LEASE PAYMENT APPROPRIATION FOR THE
PROPERTY KNOWN AS THE FAYETTE COUNTY JAIL EXPANSION AND JUDICIAL CENTER,
FAYETTEVILLE, GEORGIA, FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR 2010; TO PROVIDE FOR THE PUBLIC
HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELFARE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.


WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County is the duly authorized governing body for


Fayette County; and


WHEREAS, the lease of said property must be renewed each calendar year; and


WHEREAS, the lease payments must be authorized to be paid as scheduled each calendar year;


NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:


1.


The lease with the Fayette County Public Facilities Authority, of Fayette County, Georgia for the


property known as the Fayette County Jail Expansion and Judicial Center, Fayetteville, Georgia be


renewed for the calendar year 2009.


2.


The lease payments as required by the existing schedule of payments be funded for the calendar


year 2010.


SO RESOLVED this 6th day of January, 2010.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA


By_______________________
                    Chairman


ATTEST:


_______________________
Floyd L. Jones, Deputy Clerk 








STATE OF GEORGIA


COUNTY OF FAYETTE


RESOLUTION
NUMBER 2010-02


WHEREAS, Fayette County operates an Emergency “911" System; and


WHEREAS, Fayette County is permitted by State law to impose a monthly “911" charge upon each
exchange access facility subscribed to by telephone subscribers; and


WHEREAS, Fayette County is currently imposing said fee in the amount of $1.50 pursuant to Fayette
County Resolution Number 90-07; and


WHEREAS, the continued implementation of Resolution Number 90-07 is necessary for the further
good of the public health, safety and welfare;


NOW IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County that Resolution
Number 90-07 is hereby re-adopted and incorporated herein as if set forth fully verbatim.


ENACTED this 6th day of January, 2010.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
OF FAYETTE COUNTY


__________________________
Chairman


ATTEST:


_______________________
Floyd L. Jones, Deputy Clerk








STATE OF GEORGIA


COUNTY OF FAYETTE


RESOLUTION 
NUMBER 2010-03


WHEREAS, Fayette County operates an Emergency “911" System; and


WHEREAS, Part 4 of Article 2 of Chapter 5 of Title 46 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, as amended
by Act No. 88, Georgia Laws 1998, authorizes local governments to impose a wireless enhanced
911 charge upon each wireless telecommunications connection subscribed to by subscribers
whose billing address is within the jurisdiction of the local government; and


WHEREAS, such charges may be imposed at a rate of up to $1.00 per month per wireless connection; and


WHEREAS, such charges may be imposed by any local government that operates or contracts for the
operation of an emergency 911 system which is capable of providing automatic number
identification of wireless telecommunications connections and the location of the base station or
cell site; and


WHEREAS, Fayette County operates or has contracted for the operation of an emergency 911 system which
is capable of providing automatic number identification of wireless telecommunications
connections and the location of the base station or cell site; and


WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on the question of imposing a wireless enhanced charge in Fayette
County, Georgia on March 25, 1999; and


WHEREAS, Fayette County is currently imposing said fee in the amount of $1.00 pursuant to Resolution
Number 99-03A adopted on March 25, 1999; and


WHEREAS, the continued implementation of Resolution Number 99-03A is necessary for the further good of
the public health, safety and welfare;


NOW, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County that Resolution
Number 99-03A adopted by the Fayette County Board of Commissioners on March 25, 1999 is hereby re-adopted
and incorporated herein as if set forth fully verbatim.


ENACTED this 6th day of January, 2010.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
OF FAYETTE COUNTY


__________________________
Chairman


ATTEST:


_______________________
Floyd L. Jones, Deputy Clerk








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Finance Mary S. Holland


Further discussion of a recommendation by staff concerning a proposed policy for open market purchases.  This item was last discussed 


during the November 4, 2009 Board of Commissioners Workshop Meeting.


Staff is proposing an amendment to the County's purchasing policy that would allow a department to execute an open market purchase in 


an amount not to exceed $1,000.  These provisions would require a department to obtain three price quotes which must be documented 


and provided as support for payment for the goods or services.  


 


The Finance Department believes that the County staff time that could be saved using the proposed process would be significant.  A key 


element in the process is ensuring that departments carefully document the information they obtain regarding the cost of the goods or 


services they are seeking. 


 


The proposed policy was discussed at the November 4, 2009 Workshop Meeting during which time the Board requested information 


pertaining to the number of relevant purchases and the dollar amounts associated with those purchases.  The Board further asked staff to 


provide an audit detail showing how the proposed changes will be monitored.


The intent at this meeting is to only provide information to the Board and to discuss the request.  If the Board concurs with the request, an 


amendment to the County Code will be required, since the County's purchasing policies are also defined by local ordinance.  The issue 


can be scheduled for action at a later meeting.  The end result will be an addition to the County's Policies and Procedures Manual and an 


amendment to Article V of the Fayette County Code, which would be prepared by the County Attorney.


Not Applicable.


Yes Wednesday, November 4, 2009


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Old BusinessWednesday, January 6, 2010







Q:\Administration\Agenda Requests\2010 MEETINGS\01-06-2010\Finance\Draft Policy - Open Market 11-17-09.doc 


DRAFT 
 


OPERATIONAL FUNCTIONS 
Purchasing-Open Market Purchases by Departments 


200.16 
 
PURPOSE 


 
Purchasing Departments provide specialized expertise that enable county governments 
to procure needed goods and services at more favorable costs than would be possible 
without such expertise. County governments often provide limited purchasing authority 
to their various departments, although that level of authority varies from county to 
county. The purpose of this policy is to expand the authority of Fayette County’s 
departments to make open market purchases, effectively improving the overall efficiency 
of the department. This ability has several benefits, including: 
 


• Providing more time to the Purchasing Department to focus on high-value 
purchases, where potential cost savings are greatest; 


• Streamlining and expediting the process for lower-value purchases, enabling 
administrative savings and shortened waiting times by the end user 
(department); 


• Placing more spending decisions closer to those responsible for managing their 
budgets. 


 
POLICY 


 
Open market purchases are described in Policy No. 200.15 as those that do not require 
a sealed bid or request for proposals, nor do they require formal advertising or additional 
approval by the Board of Commissioners. The definition of open market purchases is 
limited to those which have a total cost of less than $20,000. This policy allows, but does 
not require, any county department to execute its own open market purchase less than 
$1,000. 
 
Note: This policy does not apply to the Sheriff’s Department, since they use a separate 
procurement system. 
 
PROCEDURES 


 
Each county department may continue to use the Fayette County Purchasing 
Department for all its procurement needs. When a department chooses to make its own 
purchase of goods or services valued at less than $1,000 the following procedures will 
apply.  
 


1. The originating department must obtain three price quotes via e-mail or fax. The 
quotes must be documented, and must be kept on file for at least 12 months. If a 
purchase is made through a statewide contract or similar approved means, 
additional quotes may be obtained, but will not be required. 


 
2. The originating department must complete and submit the form titled “Open 


Market Purchase – Less Than $1,000”, along with a properly completed invoice, 







Q:\Administration\Agenda Requests\2010 MEETINGS\01-06-2010\Finance\Draft Policy - Open Market 11-17-09.doc 


to the Finance Department for payment.  The Finance Department will verify 
completeness of the form prior to releasing payment for the purchase. 


 
3. No computer hardware or software can be purchased using these procedures.  


All purchases of this nature must be made through the Information Systems 
Department. 


 
4. A purchase cannot be “split” into two or more purchases for the purpose of 


avoiding the $1,000 limitation intended by this policy. 
 


5. This procedure is not intended for P-Card purchases, which must follow the 
county’s P-Card policy and procedures. 


 
6. All budget policies and procedures will continue to apply.  The expenditure must 


have been approved in the annual budget or in some other appropriate manner. 
 


7. Each month, the Finance Department will audit a randomly selected sample of 
the open market purchase forms processed during the previous month.  The 
sample size will be 10% of the forms processed during the month, with a 
minimum sample of two purchases. 


 
8. The first occurrence of an individual’s non-compliance with these procedures will 


result in a verbal reminder.  The second occurrence will result in a written 
warning.  The third occurrence may result in removal of the individual’s authority 
to make open market purchases, at the discretion of the County Administrator. 







Q:\Administration\Agenda Requests\2010 MEETINGS\01-06-2010\Finance\Purchasing Ord 11-17-09.doc 


BELOW IS THE ENTIRE TEXT OF ARTICLE V OF THE FAYETTE COUNTY CODE OF 


ORDINANCES WITH PROPOSED CHANGES INDICATED. 


 


 
ARTICLE V.  PURCHASES; SALES* 


 
 


DIVISION 1.  GENERALLY 
 


Secs. 2-106--2-115.  Reserved. 
 


DIVISION 2.  DEPARTMENT OF PURCHASING 
 
Sec. 2-116.  Department created. 
 
There is hereby created the department of purchasing. 
(Code 1983, § 2-10) 
 
Sec. 2-117.  Supervision of department. 
 
The board of commissioners, by and through the county administrator, shall have general 
supervision of the department of purchasing and shall appoint a director of purchasing. 
(Code 1983, § 2-11) 
 
Sec. 2-118.  Duties generally. 
 
The director of purchasing shall have the following duties: 
(1)   To secure prices for materials, supplies and services of every kind and character required 
by the various departments of the county. 
(2)   To inspect materials and supplies purchased by the county to determine that the materials 
and supplies are what they have been represented to be. 
(3)   To determine that the prices paid for materials and supplies purchased by through the 
county Purchasing Department are the best that can be obtained in the local market or 
elsewhere. 
(4)   Those duties prescribed in this article. 
(5)   Such other duties as the board of commissioners may from time to time prescribe and as 
contained in the employee's job description and the Fayette County Uniform Personnel 
Management System. 
(Code 1983, § 2-12) 
 
Sec. 2-119.  Purchasing authority. 
 
The director of purchasing shall have the authority to make purchases of materials, supplies and 
services on the open market where the purchase price does not exceed twenty thousand dollars 
($20,000.00); where the purchase price exceeds twenty thousand dollars ($20,000.00), the 
purchase may be made by the director of purchasing only after the prospective purchase has 
been approved by the board of commissioners on a competitive sealed bid basis. 
 
The heads of the various departments shall have the authority to make purchases of materials, 
supplies, and services on the open market where the purchase price is less than $1,000.00. 
 







Q:\Administration\Agenda Requests\2010 MEETINGS\01-06-2010\Finance\Purchasing Ord 11-17-09.doc 


(Code 1983, § 2-13) 
 
State law references:  Exceptions to procedures for certain public works contracts, OCGA § 
36-10-4.   
 
Sec. 2-120.  Inventory of county property. 
 
The finance department shall maintain a permanent inventory of all personal property of the 
county having the value of five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) or more and charged to the various 
county departments. 
 
(Code 1983, § 2-14; Ord. No. 93-10, § 1, 12-15-93; Ord. No. 2002-08, § 1, 6-27-02) 
 
State law references:  Rights and remedies of county relating to property ownership, OCGA § 
50-16-17; inventories of property owned by the state and certain public corporations, OCGA § 
50-16-120 et seq.; inventory required of county officers, OCGA § 50-16-141; entry made in 
inventory book when property disposed of, OCGA § 50-16-144.   
 
Sec. 2-121.  Inspection and testing. 
 
The director of purchasing shall inspect, or supervise the inspection of, all deliveries of 
materials, supplies or contractual services to determine their conformance with the 
specifications set forth in the pertinent purchase order or contract. The director of purchasing 
may require chemical and physical tests of samples submitted with bids and samples of 
deliveries, which examinations are necessary to determine the samples' quality and 
conformance with specifications. 
(Code 1983, § 2-15) 
 
Sec. 2-122.  Purchasing analysis. 
 
The director of purchasing shall keep himself informed of current developments in the field of 
purchasing, prices, market conditions and new products. The director of purchasing shall secure 
for the county the benefits of research done in the field of purchasing by other governmental 
jurisdictions, national technical societies, trade associations having national recognition and by 
private businesses and organizations. 
(Code 1983, § 2-16) 
 
Sec. 2-123.  File on vendors. 
 
The director of purchasing shall maintain a file of all qualified vendors who desire to do business 
with the county, which file shall be maintained according to the nature of goods and materials 
offered and shall contain a description of the vendors' commodities. 
(Code 1983, § 2-17) 
 
Sec. 2-124.  Cooperative purchasing. 
 
The director of purchasing shall have the authority to join with other governmental units in 
cooperative purchasing plans when the best interest of the county shall be served thereby. 
(Code 1983, § 2-18) 
 
State constitution references: Intergovernmental contracts, Art. IX, § III, Para.I.   







Q:\Administration\Agenda Requests\2010 MEETINGS\01-06-2010\Finance\Purchasing Ord 11-17-09.doc 


 
Sec. 2-125.  Materials, supplies and services defined. 
 
As used in this division, the term "materials, supplies and services" shall mean and include such 
items as are normally used or consumed during the course of a year and for which a general 
appropriation has been made; the term shall include the purchase of automotive equipment, 
machinery, construction contracts or other purchases of materials of a permanent or semi-
permanent nature. It shall also include the provision of maintenance and repair. 
(Code 1983, § 2-19) 
 
Secs. 2-126--2-135.  Reserved. 


 
DIVISION 3.  PURCHASING PROCEDURES 


 
Sec. 2-136.  Purchases only to be made through the director; exception. 
 
No officer or employee of the county shall make any purchase for or on behalf of the county of 
any materials, goods, wares, supplies or services of any kind whatsoever except through the 
director of purchasing. It shall be a breach of duty on the part of any officer or employee of the 
county to make any purchase, or to aid or abet the making of any purchase, in any manner 
other than through the director of purchasing. However, the provisions of this section shall not 
apply to emergency purchases provided for in this division, nor shall it apply to open market 
purchases for which the total purchase price is less than $1,000.00. 
(Code 1983, § 2-20) 
 
Sec. 2-137.  Purchase orders required; exception. 
 
No officer or employee of the county shall request a vendor to deliver goods, merchandise, 
materials or supplies to the county except upon a regular purchase order issued by the director 
of purchasing; however, the provisions of this section shall not apply to emergency purchases 
provided for in this division, nor shall it apply to open market purchases for which the total 
purchase price is less than $1,000.00. 
(Code 1983, § 2-21) 
 
Sec. 2-138.  Emergency purchases. 
 
In the event that an emergency should arise after office hours, which emergency requires 
immediate action on the part of the county department involved for the protection of the best 
interest of the county, or should such a situation arise on a Saturday, Sunday, or a holiday, and 
where it is not possible or convenient to reach the director of purchasing, any necessary 
purchase shall be made by the county department for which the purchase is necessary. The 
purchase shall be reported to the director of purchasing on the next working day. 
(Code 1983, § 2-22) 
 
State law references:  Emergency purchases by state department of administrative services, 
OCGA § 50-5-71.   
 
Sec. 2-139.  Preparation of specifications. 
 







Q:\Administration\Agenda Requests\2010 MEETINGS\01-06-2010\Finance\Purchasing Ord 11-17-09.doc 


The director of purchasing shall prepare written specifications that will best serve the interests of 
the using county departments and of the county. All specifications shall be definite, certain and 
shall permit free and open competition. 
(Code 1983, § 2-23) 
 
Sec. 2-140.  Time for making purchases; call for bids. 
 
In the purchase of all materials and supplies made through the Purchasing Department 
pursuant to this division, except for emergency purchases, the purchase shall be made within 
ten (10) days from the time the requisition is given to the director of purchasing. During the 
period within which the purchase is to be made, the director of purchasing shall give competing 
vendors an opportunity to bid. Calls for bids shall be made by the director of purchasing in such 
a manner as will, in his discretion, enable free and open competition in bidding. In the event 
calls for bids are advertised in a newspaper, the advertisement shall run two (2) times, unless 
otherwise provided, in the official newspaper of the county. 
(Code 1983, § 2-24) 
 
Sec. 2-141.  When competitive bids required. 
 
It shall be the duty of the director of purchasing to make all purchases on competitive bids, 
except as otherwise expressly provided in this chapter. 
(Code 1983, § 2-25) 
 
Sec. 2-142.  Filing of bids; public inspection. 
 
All bids submitted to the Purchasing Department for goods and materials to be sold to the 
county under the provisions of this division shall be kept on file in the department of purchasing. 
After an award has been made, the bids shall be subject to inspection at any time by any citizen 
of the county. 
(Code 1983, § 2-26) 
 
Sec. 2-143.  Disqualification of bidders. 
 
The director of purchasing shall have the authority to declare a vendor who defaults on his 
quotations to be an irresponsible bidder and to disqualify him from receiving any business from 
the county for a specified period of time. 
(Code 1983, § 2-27) 
 
Sec. 2-144.  Discretion in purchasing where quality, price and services are involved. 
 
In all purchases where quality as well as price and service is involved, the director of purchasing 
shall exercise discretion in making a purchase so that the best interests of the county are 
served. 
(Code 1983, § 2-28) 
 
Sec. 2-145.  Substitution of brand name items. 
 
In all cases where brand name items are requisitioned by the department of purchasing, the 
director of purchasing has the authority to determine whether similar products of equal quality 
offered for sale to the county at a lower price shall be ordered in lieu of the requisitioned brand 
name items. 







Q:\Administration\Agenda Requests\2010 MEETINGS\01-06-2010\Finance\Purchasing Ord 11-17-09.doc 


 
(Code 1983, § 2-29) 
 
Secs. 2-146--2-160.  Reserved. 
 
*State law references:  County property, OCGA § 36-9-1 et seq.; public works contracts, 
OCGA § 36-10-1 et seq.; bonds for public contractors, OCGA § 36-82-100 et seq.; competition 
for public work bids, OCGA §§ 36-84-1, 36-84-2; local political subdivision purchases through 
the state, OCGA § 50-5-100 et seq.; contract for acquisition or lease of property of United 
States, OCGA § 50-16-81.   
 







Open Market Purchase - Less than $1,000


(To be submitted to the Finance Department along with the invoice for payment)


Department making the purchase:


Date of Purchase:


Item(s) purchased **: 


Selected vendor:


Purchase mechanism: Competitive open-market purchase.


OR


Statewide or other approved purchasing contract.


(please specify)


If open-market purchase, please list the vendor and quoted price for the three 


lowest quotes received:


a.)


Date Vendor Price Quote


b.)


c.)


If the selected vendor was not the lowest price quote, 


please explain the selection.


Funds for the purchase are available from:


a.) The department's annual budget:


b.) Other (explain):


  


** This can be a general or summary statement if multiple items are being purchased, 


e.g. "office supplies" or "paint and painting supplies".


Signature





		Finance- Open Market Agenda Request File.pdf

		Finance- Open Market Backup

		Finance- Open Market Draft Policy.pdf

		Finance- Open Market Purchasing Ordinance

		Finance- Open Market Purchase File 








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Finance Mary S. Holland


The Finance Department will provide an update on the County's Purchasing Card Program for activity occurring in Fiscal Year 2009.


The Board of Commissioners adopted the County's purchasing card program policy on October 23, 2008 and requested staff provide a 


report to the Board periodically.  


This update is intended to only provide information regarding the County's Purchasing Card Program.  No action is being sought.


Not Applicable.


No


Yes


Yes


No


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessWednesday, January 6, 2010








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Finance Mary S. Holland


Approval of staff's recommendation to adjust the county's travel expense reimbursement rate from $.451 cents to $.41 cents per mile 


effective January 1, 2010.


The County's policy dated March 7, 2007 on travel, transportation, and allowances provides for mileage reimbursement when a privately 


owned vehicle is used for official county business in lieu of using a county-owned vehicle. The rate applied in 2009 was 45.1 cents per 


mile based on 82% of the IRS's rate, 55 cents. On December 3, 2009, the IRS announced the rate effective Jan 1, 2010 will be 50 cents 


per mile, 82% of 50 cents is 41 cents per mile. 


Authorization to adjust the travel reimbursement rate from the current 45.1 cents per mile to 41 cents per mile effective Jan 1, 2010. 


Not Applicable.


Yes Annually


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


ConsentWednesday, January 6, 2010









		Finance- Travel Expense Agenda Request File.pdf

		Finance- Travel Expense Backup






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Fire & Emergency Services David Scarbrough


Discussion with GIS Steering Committee regarding grant opportunities for GIS aerial photography.


Fayette County has an opportunity to participate in a project of aerial photography which is being coordinated through the Atlanta 


Regional Commission (ARC) with considerable cost savings.   


 


As detailed in the memorandum supporting this request, discussion will occur regarding when the flight schedule will occur, funding 


sources and cost of the aerial photography to the County, elements obtained from the previous aerial project that will be incorporated into 


this new project, the company chosen by ARC to complete the project, the need for aerial photography of Fayette County, and the GIS 


Steering Committee's recommendations with respect to this project.


Staff is requesting discussion and direction from the Board from this request.  If the Board determines participation in this project is 


acceptable a draft letter of commitment will be provided to the Chairman for his signature.


Funding for the request is relative based on how, or if, the Board decides during the request.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessWednesday, January 6, 2010







Memorandum 
 
 
To: Fayette County Board of Commissioners 
 Jack Krakeel, County Administrator  
 
From: GIS Steering Committee 
 
Date: January 6, 2010  
 
Subject: Aerial Photography 
 
 
We have an opportunity to participate in a project of aerial photography being 
coordinated through the Atlanta Regional Commission with considerable cost savings. 
The flight schedule being flown is in late January, early February 2010. In addition, 
USGS (U.S. Geological Survey) received $140 million as a part of the America 
Recovery and Reinvestment Act, of which $14.6 million is slated for mapping imagery. 
We have been contacted by USGS and told they will fund 25% of the cost of the aerial 
photography project as a matching grant to participating counties of which we qualify. 
Our current 5 year capital improvement plan contains aerial photography for 2014 with 
$220,000 allocated for the improvement. There are components from the previous 
project which we will be able to re-use such as the digital elevation model that account 
for some of the cost differential you will notice when examining the figures. Additionally, 
previous digital orthophotography cost was identified to be $196.00 per square mile.  
 
The proposed cost per square mile (197 sq miles) is $126.00 per square mile for 
Fayette County.  
This translates to:   197 x $126.00 = $24,822.00   
This means Fayette County cost would be $18,616.50 with $6,205.50 being funded by 
USGS. The aerial photography does or would provide the same degree of delineation 
that we obtained with the previous digital orthophotography. We would receive the same 
scale and resolution that we currently have. We feel participation makes fiscal sense. 
 
Kucera International Inc. is the company that has been chosen to do the aerial project 
after the RFP was sent out several months ago by the Atlanta Regional Commission. 
 
The total cost of the current imagery project was $140,000.00 and the imagery is 4 
years old having been flown in March of 2006. 
 







Aerial photography is a vital component of GIS and a mainstay layer associated with our 
parcel layer information. Several departments have provided examples of how the 
aerials are frequently used and include the following benefits. 


• Identification of new construction additions, it is not uncommon for improvements 
to be made without permits. (ASSESSORS’S OFFICE) 


• Timber harvesting identification to prevent loss of tax dollars. (ASSESSORS’S OFFICE) 
• Breaching of Conservation-Use Covenants. (ASSESSORS’S OFFICE) 
• Helps distinguish proper alignment of property lines. (ASSESSORS’S OFFICE) 
• Preliminary design of road construction improvements and transportation 


projects. (ENGINEERING) 
• Public works has noted they reference aerials daily to verify structures, roads, 


and paths as well as checking striping at intersections. (ENGINEERING) 
• Water system can overlay their valve locations for more accurate information in 


water main breaks. (WATER SYSTEM) 
• Stormwater Management from being able to look at impervious areas and land 


features. (STORMWATER) 
• Stormwater Management will use impervious data to accurately determine 


potential Stormwater Utility rate structure. (STORMWATER) 
• FEMA Community Rating System requires aerials for determination of structure 


locations. (STORMWATER) 
• Fire Department uses aerials to pre-determine long hose lay distances in areas 


where homes have extremely long driveways. (FIRE) 
 
The GIS Steering committee recommends the following. 
 


1. 


 


We recommend participation in the project by an initial letter of 
commitment to USGS, Atlanta Regional Commission and Kucera 
International Inc. consistent with and conditional to the grant funding and 
price scheme.  


2. 


 


We further would recommend that even without the 25% grant that 
Fayette County should participate at the full cost price of $24,822.00 


3. 


 


The adoption of a schedule which should place aerial photography in a 
capital improvement project rotation of every 4 years based on the 
identified benefits and that $40,000.00 remain in the 2014 capital 
improvement for aerials.  


 
 
A draft letter of commitment to be provided for the Commission Chairman’s signature if 
the Board determines participation is acceptable. 
 
 





		Fire and Emergency Services- ...ittee Agenda Request File.pdf

		Fire and Emergency Services- GIS Steering Committee Agenda Request with Backup

		Fire and Emergency Services- ...ittee Agenda Request File.pdf

		Fire and Emergency Services- GIS Steering Committee Backup












COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Fleet Maintenance Bill Lackey


Approval of staff's recommendation to transfer $4,300.00 from Contingency Funds to fund Corrective Action Plan activities at the Public 
Works / Fleet Maintenance property as required by the Georgia Environmental Protection Division.


On March 12, 2009 the Board of Commissioners awarded a contract for $5,700.00 to Mill Creek Environmental Services, Inc. (MCES) to 
prepare a Corrective Action Plan (CAP-Part A) as required by the Georgia Environmental Protection Division (EPD) to address issues 
regarding contaminated soil encountered during Underground Storage Tank (UST) removal activities during 2008. After the CAP-Part A 
was submitted to EPD, EPD requested that one additional Monitoring Well (MW) be installed. MCES installed the MW and collected soil/
ground water samples on 11/20/2009 at a cost of $4,229.93. Based on the sample data, MCES prepared a CAP-A Addendum for 
submittal to EPD and is recommending the installation of two additional monitoring wells. These data will be used to prepare a Site 
Investigation Plan (SIP). The purpose of the SIP is to collect more information regarding soil/ground water contamination and then 
characterize the source and extent of contamination. Upon receipt of the analytical results from the SIP, a Site Investigation Status 
Report (SISR) will be prepared and will offer recommendations for further investigation or preparation of a Corrective Action Plan - Part B, 
as needed. To date the County has spent $9,929.93 ($5,700.00 + $4,229.93) on corrective actions. The estimated cost for the SIP is 
$6,288.80. Per the consultant, $6,218.73 of the SIP cost will be reimbursable through the G.U.S.T. Fund. Expenses related to the 
Corrective Action Plan in excess of $10,000.00 are eligible for reimbursement through the G.U.S.T. Fund. 
 
A transfer of $4,300 from contingency is required. See funding below.


Transfer funds from contingency into the project account in the amount of $4,300.00 to cover net expenses related to Corrective Action 
Plan activities. Increase revenue budget for the $6,219 receivable from GUST.


Total project cost = $16,219 (5,700+4,230+6,289).  Reimbursement from GUST = $6,219.  Net cost to County = $10,000 of which $5,700 
was funded in FY2009. The remaining $4,300 is needed from contingency as an expenditure budget amendment. 


Yes Thursday, March 12, 2009


No


Yes


No


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentWednesday, January 6, 2010








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Public Works Andy Adams


Approval of staff's request to extend the county's existing annual asphalt agreement with current vendors for an additional two months.


The Road and SPLOST departments have several key projects that require paving in January, as the weather allows.  The purpose of 


this extension is to ensure we have a supplier under contract in the event of favorable weather.  The Road department will be working on 


an annual contract for 2010 in the meantime. 


 


The existing provider is E.R. Snell Contractors, Inc. (Tyrone Plant) and the secondary provider is C.W. Matthews Contracting, Inc. (Forest 


Park Plant).


Extend Bid #702, annual asphalt contract with E. R. Snell Contractors, Inc as primary and C. W. Matthews, Inc. as secondary until 


February 28, 2010.


Funding for asphalt is budgeted in the Road departments O & M line item account # 10040220-531171.  Asphalt for SPLOST projects is 


funded by the applicable SPLOST account for each road.


Yes April 9,2009


No


Yes


No


Yes


Yes Yes


ConsentWednesday, January 6, 2010







 


_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West                                              Main Phone:  770-460-5730                                               Web Site:  www.fayettecounty ga.gov 


 
To:  Purchasing Department  
 
From:  Andy Adams, Road Department 
 
Date:  December 22, 2009 
 
Subject:   Recommendation for extending Bid # 702, Asphalt Pricing 
 
The Road Department has two important paving operations we hope to complete in January or 
February – if the weather is sufficiently warm and dry.  Our initial estimate of asphalt needed to 
complete paving on our two (2) major projects exceeds 3,000-tons.   To ensure asphalt is 
available for these, or other minor projects, we recommend that the County’s existing contract 
for asphalt be extended for two months (i.e., until February 28, 2010).  The current contract was 
awarded in April 2009, under Bid No. 702.  E.R. Snell Contractor Inc., Tyrone Plant is the 
primary supplier and C.W. Matthews Contracting Company, Inc., Forest Park Plant is the 
alternate.   
 
We understand Purchasing has contacted each supplier and both have agreed to extend the 
contract.  We believe these unit prices provided in the contract are fair and valid since they are 
based on an index that fluctuates with changing petroleum costs.   
 
The annual asphalt contract for 2010 will be prepared during this extension and will be in place 
prior to the commencement of paving operations in the spring.   


 

























		Public Works- Asphalt Contract Extension Agenda Request File.pdf

		Public Works- Asphalt Contract Extension Backup

		PW Asphalt Contract Recommendation.pdf

		PW Asphalt Contract Backup












COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Public Works Phil Mallon


Approval of staff's recommendation that the existing Subgrant Agreement with the Atlanta Regional Commission for completion of the 


Comprehensive Transportation Plan (CTP) be extended  until April 30, 2010.  


On August 14, 2008 the Board of Commissioners entered into an Agreement with ARC to participate in ARC's Comprehensive 


Transportation Plan Program.  The Agreement specified that all work shall be completed by December 31, 2009.   


 


The project has proceeded according to schedule until it was intentionally delayed for the following reasons.  First, to incorporate the 


results of a public referendum in November (the results of which impact the plan's five-year constrained list of projects); and second, to 


schedule the last round of meetings with elected officials and the public until after the December holiday season.   


 


The proposed amendment has been approved by the ARC and extends the project for an additional four months, until April 30, 2010.  


The extension does not change the project's scope or budget.   


 


The one-page agreement is attached as back-up and requires signature by the Chairman.  


Approval of the proposed "Amendment of Subgrant Agreement" with the Atlanta Regional Commission, Number UP 0801.1.  


Execution of the Agreement does not require funding.


Yes Thursday, August 14, 2008


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


ConsentWednesday, January 6, 2010









		Public Works- Comprehensive T...nsion Agenda Request File.pdf

		Public Works- Comprehensive Transportation Plan Extension Backup






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Purchasing Tim Jones


Approval of staff's recommendation to award the County's annual Bid #723 Janitorial Services for paper supplies to various vendors.


This was a bid for an annual agreement. These prices will be held firm for twelve (12) months with all the recommended companies. 


 


Bid #723, Janitorial Supplies - Paper Items, is for items that are used by Fayette County Building & Ground Maintenance, Water System, 


Fire & EMS and Animal Control.


Approval of Staff's recommendation to award Bid #723 Janitorial Supplies - Paper Items, for the acquisition of janitorial supplies paper 


items from six (6) approved bidders.


Items will be requisitioned from Building & Ground Maintenance, Water System, Fire & EMS and Animal Control as needed.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


ConsentWednesday, January 6, 2010

























		Purchasing- Bid #723 Janitorial Supplies Agenda Request File.pdf

		Purchasing- Bid #723 Janitorial Supplies Backup

		Purchasing #723 Janitorial Supplies - Paper Items Backup.pdf

		Purchasing #723 Janitorial Supplies Paper Items Backup












COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Purchasing Tim Jones


Approval of staff's recommendation to award the county's annual Bid #724 Janitorial Services for plastic products to various vendors.


This was a bid for an annual agreement. These prices will be held firm for twelve (12) months with all the recommended companies. 


 


Bid #724, Janitorial Supplies - Plastic Items, is for items that are used by Fayette County Building & Ground Maintenance, Water System, 


Fire & EMS and Animal Control.


Approval of Staff's recommendation to award Bid #724 Janitorial Supplies - Plastic Items, for the acquisition of janitorial supplies plastic 


items from five (5) approved bidders.


Items will be requisitioned from Building & Ground Maintenance, Water System, Fire & EMS and Animal Control as needed.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


ConsentWednesday, January 6, 2010

























		Purchasing- Bid #724 Janitorial Supplies Agenda Request File.pdf

		Purchasing- Bid #724 Janitorial Supplies Backup

		Purchasing #724 Janitorial Supplies - Plastic Items Back-up-1.pdf

		Purchasing #724 Janitorial Supplies Plastic Items Backup-2












COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Purchasing Tim Jones


Approval of staff's recommendation to ward the county's annual Bid #725 Janitorial Services for cleaning supplies to various vendors.


This was a bid for an annual agreement. These prices will be held firm for twelve (12) months with all the recommended companies. 


 


Bid #725, Cleaning & Janitorial Supplies, is for items that are used by Fayette County Building & Ground Maintenance, Water System, 


Fire & EMS and Animal Control.


Approval of Staff's recommendation to award Bid #725 Cleaning & Janitorial Supplies, for the acquisition of Cleaning & Janitorial Supplies 


from nine (9) approved bidders.


Items will be requisitioned from Building & Ground Maintenance, Water System, Fire & EMS and Animal Control as needed.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


ConsentWednesday, January 6, 2010

























		Purchasing- Bid #725 Cleaning...plies Agenda Request File.pdf

		Purchasing- Bid #725 Cleaning and Janitorial Supplies Backup

		Purchasing #725 Cleaning & Janitorial Supplies Back-up-1.pdf

		Purchasing #725 Cleaning & Janitorial Supplies Backup-2












COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Sheriff's Office Captain Michelle Walker, if needed


Approval of request from the Sheriff's office to amend the Overtime Budget for the Criminal Investigations Division by $3,39.31 for 
reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various Federal Agencies.


The Fayette County Sheriff's Office Criminal Investigations Division receives monies for reimbursement of overtime funds from various 
federal programs for personnel assigned to work investigations in cooperation with these agencies.


Authorization from the Board of Commissioners to amend the Overtime Budget Account for the Fayette County Sheriff's Office Criminal 
Investigations Division (10030321-511300) by $3,339.31 which has been received from various federal programs for the 2009-2010 
Fiscal Year.  This would revise the Overtime Regular Budget Account to $122,904.59.


No funding is required for this request.


No


No


Yes


No


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentWednesday, January 6, 2010








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Water System Tony Parrott


Approval of staff's recommendation to award Bid #728 Water Distribution parts to five companies which were the low bidders on items 


used by the Water System for water distribution system installation and repair.


Items used by the Water System for repair and maintenance in distribution are purchased as needed.  Quantities ordered vary depending 


on the need, so exact quantity cannot be predetermined.  Enough stock is kept in inventory at the Distribution Ship to avoid water 


customers being without water for long periods of time when there is a main break that needs emergency repair. 


 


This is an annual bid for these items.


Award of the low bid items to five recommended companies as detailed in supporting documentation.


Funding has been budgeted in the Water System repairs to water meters and lines.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


ConsentWednesday, January 6, 2010







 


 
 
December 22, 2009 
 
 
 
 
TO: Tim Jones 
From: Tony Parrott 
 
Re: Award Recommendations for Bid #728 – Water Distribution Parts - 2010 
 
I am recommending awarding Bid #728 to five companies that were low bidders on items used 
by the Fayette County Water System for water distribution and repair: 
 
Delta Municipal Supply Company 
Ferguson Waterworks 
Hayes Pipe Supply, Inc. 
HD Supply Waterworks 
Southern Pipe & Supply 
 
Attached is a low bid worksheet for each vendor. 
 
Ferguson Waterworks was the overall lowest bidder on the valve box category and we 
recommend they are awarded the bid for line items 220-225. 
 
All of these items are used by the Water System for repair and maintenance and are purchased as 
needed.  Quantities ordered vary depending on the need, so exact quantities cannot be 
predetermined.  Our stock is kept up-to-date at the Distribution Shop to avoid our water 
customers being without water for long periods of time when there is a main break that needs 
emergency repair. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214 Main Phone:  770-460-5730 Web Site:  www.fayettecountyga.gov 





		Water System- Bid #728 Distri...Parts Agenda Request File.pdf

		Water System- Bid #728 Distribution Parts Backup

		Water System- Bid #728 Distribution Parts Backup.pdf

		Tim Jones Memo for 2010 Bid # 728 (2)

		Ferguson Waterworks bid #728 recommendations

		Ferguston Waterworks Bid #728



		Hayes Pipe Supply Inc  bid recommendation

		TALLY SHEET BID #728



		hdsupply bid recommendation

		HD Supply Bid #728



		recommendations for bid #728- Delta Municipal

		Delta Municipal Supply Bid #728



		Southern Pipe  Supply recommendation

		Sheet1





		Water System- Bid #728 Distribution Parts Tally Sheet









